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Dear Mr. Wheeler:

This is in rep1y to your letter of December 6, 1974, requesting
an advisory opinion concerning the possibility of ASTH deve10p1ng a
standard that contains a performance requirement for bookmatches that

can be met only by using a process for wh1cn a particular company or
individual holds the patent rights.

I see no legal prohibition against the issuance of a ‘performance
requirement that, at the prﬂsnnt time, can be met only by a patented .
process. If the requirement is written in performance terms, other
interested persons are free to develop a process capable of meeting
the requirement. In any event, any requirement developed is subject
to subsequent rulemaking activities including notice, comments and
opportunity for oral presentations and any person may then raise
objections to the proposed requirements for whatever reasons they
consider appropriate.

Since I do not consider a performance requirement such as the
one described above to be prohibited, your questions number 2 and 3
appsar to be academic. However, although no in-depth research has been
done on these matters I do not see how the Ccnsumer Product Safety
Commission could require mandatory licensing or the suspension or
regulation of royalty payments due to patent rights.
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Address Reply To:

Michael Brown, Esq.

Office of General Counsel

Consumer Product Safety Commission
Washington, D. C. 20207

Dear Mr. Brown:

As you know, ASTM is right now engaged in the business of developing a
Consumer Product Safety Standard for Bookmatches, as a selected offeror under
Section 7. '

In the course of developing the standard, an important legal questioﬁ
arose to which we urgently need your advisory opinion.

The issue is as follows: Suppose ASTM develops a standard containing a
performance requirement for the bookmatch (for example, all matches shall ex-
tinguish themselves within 10 seconds after being 1it). Suppose that a particular
company (or individual) holds a patent to the only known process for meeting such
a requirement. This raises a number of questions to which we would like your
opinion: :

(1) Is there any legal prohibition on setting a safety standard ]

when it is only possible to meet such standard by one process Jj’f
vhich is patented? ] W

(2) Can CPSC, in such a case, require mandatory licensing?

(3) In such a situation, what would be the status of royalty pay-
meuts? Could they be suspended? Regulated?

We are also attaching a copy of a letter from the Anti-trust Division,

6 Ducember 197475 7T~
S W

L

U.S. Department of Justice that you might want to consider in answering the three’

questions raised above.

The first draft of the ASTM standard is schedulad to be draftad bzfore
the cad of Dacembar (since AST is requived to submit a final proposed s R
by February 4.) ‘hevefore, we would like an answer just as quickly as pozvibie

Sincerely,
/

e N
J. vheoler, Chailvann :
Cormaittee on Dovaloping a Con s Produact
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Mr. Pail W, Hallman v N
Deputy Director

Division of Compliance

Burcau of Product Safety

5401 Viestbard Avenue

Bethesda, Maryland 20016

Dear IMr. Hallman:—

This is in response to your letter of Februgry 21,
1973, in which you recuested this Daaartﬂonv s views
on the antitrust implications of certain actions that
the Bureau of Product Safety is contemplating with
respect to the match manufacturing industry. You indi-
cate that the Bureau's concern in this area stems from
~ tha fact that an estimated 50,000 PﬂLcH—VeTQEeJ in-
juries occur annually, many of which are very serious.
Apparently, one Food & Drug Administration study
indicated thet a large number of the 1nJLr1cs happened.
to children, and that many of the zaccidents were
related to'defects in the matches or in the wmatch
container's deolgn i

N

In your letter to the Deparunert -you menti.
three types of JOlﬂ* 1naLery efforts that the Bu
was consicdering in .its effort to rcodce the number o
"match-relatad 1nju11ﬁs You suggested that members .
of the incustry might begin a JOWW, advertising campaign
aimed at houscnolds with young children; that they ,
might develep a set of Vo]LﬂLury S“Leby stendards eal:

Y

“ing with the dsfﬂg or performance of matches and wmatch-

‘books; or that Lhcv might give technical infownation
and azdvice to the Bureau of Product Safety to heln the

2

Puresau Clbth 2 set of mﬂndat05y safety regulations,
which » buld then be publiisted in the Code of Federal

' : You suzcested that any of these projects.
a good deal of consul’a«:ou and coopera

e mambers of the Jncastry, and would perhx
i 21 to arvive at an industry ”pocition‘ to oec
ented at Ifuvlher meetings with Burcau nersonuel.

oo




You indicatcd that, on June 15, 1972, you ieé vich
pemmers of the ma “‘h 1n.udtry to discuss ways viTaeutiing
cdewn the number of injuries to children, as well as Dlano
touzlp improve the gencral safety of matches. Appare ently,
the )ndustly $ representatives told you that thny could
not work together on these problems because of the pro-
hibitions contained in a 1946 antitrust Consent Decree
that they had entered into with the Department of Justice
,ygl::ﬁmﬁtuh_v v. Diamond ifntch Co.;—€ivil No. 25-397,
cates Aoril ¢, 19406, Beczuss ot the concerns CXDLC"’ed
by the match manufacturcrs, you have requested our views
as to whether the antitiust laws or the Diamond Match

judg.cnt would Iorbid any of thcsp prOJeCLS tnat the
Burecau is contemnlating,

The first proao sal COﬁp&WOlLLed that the ma atch pro- -
ducers would join in an 1nddstry—v1d° advertising campaign
designed to warn parents with small children 2azainst the
daﬁueLs of matches, We are of the’ opinion thrat neither

the DWQHOﬂd llatch decree nor the antitrust laws in general
would raise any legal obstacles to a joint a&VeEt1811“

plan limited solely to warning the public of the safety
hazaxrds connected with matches. A

The second pronosal contemplates that the members
of the: .uLery would JOﬂnLly develop voTLuLaYy safety
standards foxr matches and matchbooks. Scction 1 of the
Sherman Act prohibits concerted actions which may un-
réasonaoly restrain trdde or commerce. ”\crefor;, the
critical qucstion.as to whether joint efforts by thv :
match wanufacturers to establish voluntary safety a“daLcs
would wviolate the antitiust laws is whether the eczual ,
standards developed unreasonably restrained trade or = .
commerce. ELiforits by the match manufacturers to jointly -
cevelon safety standards, in and of themselves, would
rot violate the outstanding antitrust decrce or the anti~
tirust laws. Hewever, until the standards are developed,
it is of course impossible for us to determine whcther
ihe standards “an* unreasonanly restrain trade. Ve can,
the other hut4 V“”LU”C certain suggestions vach
nered to, would lcssen the 1Lk011nood that the

: se serlous competitive probiems,
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The standavds should not arbitrarily disadvantage
oy vroup of manulacturcers. 7This danger nay be lessencd

15 all segments of the industcy as well as interésted

-

~

persons outside of the industey ave provided the 'onnoitunity
to particinate in the development of the proposed standard,
lihenever possible, the standards should be drafted with
reference to ‘'merformance”

¥ T rather thaun design specifications.
fhe use of 'performance" standards allows-monulfacturers
to innovate and scel more ceffici

in

cient methods of achieving
tie goal of the standard -- this case, improved sailely.
lio attemnt shculd be made to coerce compliance with any

—voluntary standaird. Such action by wanufacturers would

amount to a private arrogation of public power in violation
of the antitvust laws. Iinally, it must be stressed thac
any attempt to use the voluntary stancards as part of a
price-fixing, market allocation, or other anticompetitive
scheme would violate botlr the antitiust laws and the out-
stending decree, ‘

The third course of action contemnlated wéuld involve
joint industry presentations of techanical information and
advice to the Bureau to eassist the Burecau in developning
mandatory safety standarcs. Heither the antitrust laws
nor the outstanding decice prevent the match manufacturers
£yom consulting jointly with a government agency fow the
purpose of assisting the lattexr to develop safety standards.
The Dezpartment believes, however, that the Burcau when
sttemnting to detexmine the present state of the art ox '
+he techniczl feasibility of a standard should discuss such
natters with the manufacturets on an indivicdual basis
rather than with the industzy as a whole. Ey acting in this

manner Che Buvrcau might find that, by considering a veriety
of vicwnoints, it cen develop its mandatoxy standards from
a broader data-base. ‘ :

Attached to your letter to us was a letter dated
February 12, 1973, that the Directoxr of the Bureau of Pro-
Cuct Sarety sent out to a numbexw of wnatchstick producers.
Ta that lecter the Divector invited an industry etioxrt not
only to develop saseuy ct&ndatds,‘but'also‘to‘do rescarth
into the product iiseli, with a Vi<W Lo reaucing the salety
hazarxds associated with matches. -
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fhéther an industry--vida joint rescarch of
unzasonagbty restraln Cquuthion in innovaitlo:
npoa an assessment of a nuber of factual consi

varciticular to the specific joint research eflorc.
the researcn problem must be
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ther such joint research would rais® serious anti-
For your guidance, however, we can nake

Potential antitrust conces:
lessened by limiting the joint ef

rns can be
nicat ba .
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considered “"basic” as distinguilshed from "anplied" reseaxch.
Joint research efforts to dectermine the most dangerous .
propertics of matches and to establish uniform means of
testing or measuring such properties would not appear to .
raise significant antitrust concerns. Once thza basic
researcn knowledge has been developed, however, the member '
of the industry should, in most cases, be reguired to encage
in independent efforts to reduce the basic scientific know=
ledge to practice.

In sum, concerted research efforts to improve the
safety of matches would not viola te the outstanding decree.
Vhile it is impossible to determine in advance wheth2r any
particular joint research eiffort would violats the anti- ;
tyust laws, the antitrust concerns can pe materially lessened
by adherence to the suggestions wmade above. T o

I hope this letter has bsen responsive ©o your inguiry.
if we can be of any Furthar assistance to the Burcaun in its
cfforts to improve the safety of matches, ycu can count Ga
onr coopasration.

-




